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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

CHAIRMANS STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 was a record year for Atlantic Carbon Group plc ("ACG" or “the Company”} with both record production and financial
performance.

While 2016 was a challenging year as the Company sought to integrate and develop the Hazleton Shaft Corporation ("HSC")
operations after the acquisition of HSC on May 27% 2018, the hard work bore fruit in 2017, the first full year of the combined
operation.

In 2017 adjusted EBITDA" increased over nine fold over the previous year to $14.5 million (on a turnover of $31.5 million)
and run of mine production over three fold to over 1 million tons making ACG the largest US producer of anthracite,

Operating profit was $10.8 million after taking depreciation (non cash) of $6.2 million and interest of $6.6 million, this resuited
in an accounting loss of $2.9m.

This compares with a loss of $12.7 million in 2016, which represents a very encouraging positive turnaround in performance.
The US Government’s focus on reviving American industries does give us optimism that prices will strengthen as Government
policies take effect.

On 1% March 2018 the US Government introduced a 25% tariff on steel imports from a number of countries. This has already
resulted in an increase in US stee| industry utilisation and consequent increase in demand for anthracite.

The bulk of ACG anthracite production is for the US iren and steei industry and the new steel tariff, together with the upcoming
US infrastructure bill provides an optimistic outlook for anthracite demand though the remainder of 2018 and into 2019. Indeed,
ACG has already pre-sold aimast all of 2018 projected production and US steel companies are now seeking to lock into 2019
supply. The Company's recently secured sales contracts are already showing price increase in the high teens to 20%.

The Company has recently renegotiated the interest rate on its principal loan with White Oak Global Advisors L1.C from 14%
down to 9.5% representing a substantial reduction in interest payments going forward,

In similar vein the Company has also renegotiated its anthracite royalty payments at Jeansville, Spring Mountain and Hazleton
Shaft sites, with a substantial reduction on the baseline rate with provision for indexing related to sales price. This represents
a considerable saving on operating costs and a more equitable arangement with the royalty owners reflecting the prevailing
sales price of the product.

The Company's improved performance has also attracted substantial new equity funding with two recent share subscriptions
totalling £1 million at a share value of £0,005. This vaiues the Company at over £35 million (over $US50 million).
All of this gives us the confidence to look forward positively for the remainder of 2018.

in August of 2017 we combined Coal Contractors and HSC management and administration operations at new offices at
Stockton Mine and | would like to command the cooperation of all concermed in making a success of this move. Finally, |
would also like to thank all our employees for their cooperation and performance in 2017 which gives us great confidence
going forward.

(o o/

Adam R Wilson
Chairman

04 May 2018

* Eamings Before interest Tax Depreciation Amortisation (EBITDA) has been adjusted to included capitalisation of
overburden removal costs in davelopments cils which is now standard practice for mining companies and will be utilised
going forward for accounting purposes.



ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

The Diractors of the Company and its subsidiary undartakings (which together comprise ‘the Group'} present their Strategic
Report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Business Review

On 1% September 2017 the Company leased the Spring Mountain property comprising 930 acres of land and containing
approx. 2.6 million tons of anthracite {clean coal product). The property has the benefit of a Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection mining permit and is located immediately adjacent, and west of, the Company’s Jeansville Mine
and includes:

+ the cperational, but currently idled, Wet Slope Basin Mine;
» the undeveloped Number 4 Basin; and
= the undeveloped Spring Brook North and South areas.

The addition of this property to the Company’s reserve base is a particularly aftractive acquisition as it can be operated
together with Jeansville Mine and provides a suitable location for the relocation of the Stockton processing plant which would
process both Jeansville and Spring Mountain run of mine anthracite. This will faciitate substantial cost savings as four miles
of on-highway haulage of run of mine anthracite to the Hazleton Shaft processing plant will be eliminated.

There is also an operational railroad on the western part of the property where anthracite loading facilities can be readily
established enabiing direct rail shipping to custorners without the additional cost of on-highway transfer to the Hazleton Shaft
site.

Reserves

The Company’s clean coal product reserve base increased by approx. 2 million tons in 2017 to a total in excess of 10.3
million tons. The Spring Mountain acquisition added approx. 2.5 million tons set against approx. 0.5 million tons mined
during the year. In addition, there are substantial, but unquantified, reserves of anthracite culrm (bank material) and siit at
Hazteton Shaft, Beaverbrook and Sandy Run.

Mining Operations

Mining operations in 2017 were concentrated mainly at the Stockton and Jeansville Mines with a small contribution from
Hazleton Shaft Mine.

Production of ROM anthracite excaeded 1 million tons for the first time with total production of 1,024,254 tons making ACG
the largest anthracite producer in the USA.

Stockton Mine was, again, the largest producer with one large basin cut being mined during 2017 with production from the 45
feet thick Mammoth seam at the bottom of the basin extending into Q1 2018.

Production at Jjeansville Mine continued alongside the abandoned mine reclamation project which is now programmed to be
complete in Q2 2018. This work is being undertaken as contractor to the Pennsylvania Department of Environmentat
Protection, Bureau of Abandoned Mine Reclamation and is a significant revenue generator for the Company.

Mining on a relatively small scale took place at Hazleton Shaft Mine and also included recovery of high quality anthracite
fines, formerly a waste product from deep mining and processing operations on the site but now in demand from a number of
customers.

Mining operations are continuing throughout 2018 at Stockton, Jeansville and Hazleton Shaft Mines together with supply of
anthracite sitt and fines from the Sandy Run operation. Preduction from the Spring Mountain Wet Slope Basin Mine is aiso
programmed to recommence during the course of the year.

Produciion of hard rock aggregates confinued at Stockton Mine, crushing hard sandstones which are extracted as part of the
overburden removal to recover anthracite. The aggregates are shipped from the siie via the Stockton rail terminal and provide
a useful revenue stream for the Company.

Processing Operations

Processing operations in 2017 were concentrated at Hazleton Shaft plant with the Stockion Plant being idled during the year.
The Stockton Plant was restarted in Q1 2018 to mest increased demand but subject to further improvements at the Hazleton
Shaft Plant it is intended to relocate the Stockton Plant to the Wet Slope site as indicated above.,

New storage sheds for dried anthracite were completed during 2017 at the Hazleton Hiller Drying Plant and rail loading was
also extended to directly serve this plant. The Hazleton Hiller Drying Plant at Hazleton Shaft is a 50% each joint venture
between HSC (now ACG) and Hiller Carben LLC. Hazleton Hiller is contracted to take 150,000 tons a year of processed
anthracite from ACG for supply to the steel and foundry industries. Consideration is currently being given to expanding the
plant to increase capacity to 250,000 tons a year.



ATLANTIC CARBON GRCUP PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Market Review

Both clean anthracite and run of mine anthracite (“ROM") sales increased in 2018. Clean anthracite sales at 275,089 tons
were up 13.5% on 2016, and ROM sales at 122,710 tons were up 228% on 2016 generating an additional $4.7 million revenue
{up 17.6% on 2016},

Weak anthracite pricing did, however, continue through 2017 with only a slight recovery in prices compared with 2016 due to
a combination of yet another wam winter in north east USA, weak industrial demand and cheap anthracite exports from

Russia and Breakaway East Ukraine (via Russia) which have also depressed industrial prices. Prospects for 2018, however,
look much better with both demand strengthening and prices improving.

Results and Financial Review

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 before taxation amounts to $2,868,537 (vear ended 31 December
2016: loss of $12,724 207).

Key financial highlights for the year to 31 December 2017 are:

31 December 31 December

2017 2018

Revenue $31,469,082 $26,737,456
Gross profit $11,625,128 $1,519,109
Gross margin 36.9% 56%
EBITDA $10,866,785 ($435,429)
$14,546,284 $1,535,587

Adjusted EBITDA*

*Adjusted EBITDA for the year has been adjusted for the costs of the overburden removal (2016: adjusted for one off
acquisition costs for Hazleton Shaft Corporation.

Key Performance Indicators {“KPis™)

The Board monitors the activities and performance of the Group on a regular basis. The Board uses both financial and non-
financial indicators based on budget versus actual to assess the performance of the Group. The indicators set out below
were used during the year to 31 December 2017 and will continue to be used by the Board to assess performance over the
year to 31 December 2018.

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Reserves (tons clean coal) 10,337,000 9,300,600
ROM Production (tons) 1,024,294 286,669
Clean Anthracite production 238,704 226,659
ROM Sales 131,990 53,708
Clean Anthracite Sales (tons) 275,099 244,021
Health and Safety — number of reportable accidents (number) 5 0
Environmental Incidents - breaches of environmental legislation {(number) - 2

The Group is obliged to report any health and safety incidents to the Pennsylvanian Department of Environmental Protection.
No Environmental incidents were reported and of the health and safety incidents reported in 2017, none resulted in hospital
treatmeant or any further action,

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The management of the business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to & number of risks.

Risks are formally reviewed by the Board, and appropriate processes are put in place to monitor and mitigate them. If more
than one event occurs, it is possible that the overall effect of such events would compound the possible adverse effects on

the Group.

Mining and processing risks
The key buisiness risks affecting the Group are set out below:

The Group’s principal operation is the mining of coal. Its operations are subject to all of the hazards and risks normally
encountered in mining and processing coal. These include unusual and unexpected geological formations, rock falls, flooding
and other conditions involved in the extraction of material, any of which could result in damage to the mine and other producing
facilities, damage to fife or property, environmental damage and possible legat liability. Although adequate precautions to

4
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STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

minimise risk are taken, operations are subject to hazards, which may result in environmental pollution and consequent liability
which could have a material adverse impact on the business, operations and financial performance of the Group.

As is common with all mining operations, there is uncertainty and therefore risk associated with the Group's aperating
parameters and costs. These can be difficult to predict and are often affected by factors outside the Group's control.

The Group may be required to undertake clean-up programmes resulting from any contamination from its operations or to
participate in mine rehabilitation programmes which may vary from project to project. The Group follows all necessary laws
and regulations and is not aware of any present material issues in this regard.

Environment, health and safety

The Company is pleased to report that there were no environmental incidents in 2017. ACG has a good working relationship
with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection and any potential issues are dealt with in advance of becoming
reportable incidents.

There were five reportable accidents in 2017 which, although regrettable, were of a minor nature ie. a broken wrist resulting
from a fall from a loader; a cut that required stitches to the head when a wrench slipped off a bolt and struck the employee;
and three incidences of rust, dirt, etc. in the eye.

The Company takes its health and safety responsibilities very seriously and appointed a dedicated Safety Officer on 1% March
2017 and a Safely Committee was also established. Safety training, as appropriate takes place for all employees with
particular attention to supervisors. From April 2017 refresher safety training has also taken place for all employees who are
crossed trained for all of the Company’s sites.

Supervisors now attend an annual class on the responsibilities of supervisors, where they are instructed in hazard recognition,
task & hazard training, safe operating procedures, etc.

Reserve and resource estimatas

The Group's reported reserves and resources are only estimates. No assurance can be given that the estimated reserves
and resources will be recovered or that they will be recovered at the rates estimated. Reserve and resource estimates are
based on sampling and, consequently, are uncertain because the samples may not be representative. Reserve and resource
estimates may require revision (either up or down} based on future actual production experience.

Volatiiity of commodity prices

Historically, commodity prices have fluctuated and are affected by numerous factors beyond the Group's control, including
global demand and supply, international economic trends, currency exchange fluctuations, expectations for inflation,
speculative activity, consumption patterns and giobal or regional political events. The aggregate effect of these factors is
impossible to predict. Fluctuations in commodity prices, over the long term, may adversely impact the returns of the Group's
investments.

A significant reduction in giebal demand for coal, leading to a fall in coal prices, could lead to a significant fall in the cash flow
of the Group, which may have a material adverse impact on the operating results and financial condition of the Group,

Dependence on key personnel

The Group and Company are dependent upon the executive management team. Whiist it has entered into contractuat
agresments with the aim of securing the services of these personnel, the retention of their sarvices cannot be guaranteed.
The development and success of the Group depends on the Company's ability to recruit and retain high quality and
experienced staff. The loss of the service of key personnel or the inability to attract additional qualified personnel as the
Group grows could have an adverse effect on future business and financial conditions.

Currency risk

The Group reports its results in US Dollars, whilst the functional currency of the Parent Company is Pound Sterling. This may
result in additions to the Group’s reported cosis. Fluctuations in exchange rates between currencies in which the Group
invest, reparts or derives income may cause fluctuations in its financial results that are not necessarily related to the Group's
underlying operations.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management

The Group's operations expose it 10 a variety of financial risks that include the effect of changes in debt market prices and
foreign currency exchange rates, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group has a risk management programme
in place that seeks to limit the adverse effacts on the financial performance of the Group by monitoring levels of debt finance
and the related finance costs. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate costs and, as
such, no hedge accounting is applied.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Details of the Group's financial risk management policies are set out in Note 1 to the Financial Statements.
Outiook and Future Developments

The improved performance in 2017 together with strengthening demand and improvements in pricing in 2018 and
renegotiation of interest rates and royalty payments are all major positives for the Company going forward in 2018 and beyond.
With the recent equity raise {previously discussed in the Chairman’s Statement} the Company is now considering a major
“liquidity event” with the preference being a relisting later this year, preferably on the London Stock Exchange.

The Company is also actively engaged in further developing its position in the Pennsylvania anthracite industry with a view to
improving both capacity and efficiency and improving market share both in terms of size and pricing with particular interest
being directed towards the higher margin heating market. To this end preliminary terms have been agreed with another major
player in the industry, Discussions with interested parties on funding and due diligence are currently ongoing.

All of this, provides us with cause for optimism going forward through 2018 and we will advise on further developments on
both the kiquidity event and the potential acquisition as events progress.

This_report was approved by the Board on 04 May 2018 and signed on its behalf.

Aol

Adam Wilson
Director



ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2017

The Directors present their Report, together with the Group Financial Statements and the Independent Auditor's Report, for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The principal activity of the Group is the development and
operation of the Stockton Mine, Hazleton Shaft Mine, Jeansville Mine and an anthracite washing plant in Pennsylvania, USA.

Dividends

The Directors are precluded from recommending a dividend.

Directors

The names of the Directors are shown in the Company Information on page 1.
Directors’ Interests

The Directors who served during the year ended 31 December 2017 had the foliowing beneficial interests in the shares of the
Company:

31 December 2017 1 January 2017

Orsd'::raz Options ng?g Options
Stephen Best 1 1,131.311,911 441,765,028 980,546,884 288,000,000
Adam Wilson & 241,954,506 - 241,954 506 -
Peter Chinneck™ 312,551,282 - 312,551,282 -
George Roskos 588,265,928 170,765,028 269,166,667 -

{1) Sfephen Best's shares are heid as follows: 3,736,000 personally, 430,338,327 by his spouse, 18,096, 148 by Willoughby (465) Limited,
576,000,000 by Mayford Equities, 103,147,436 through Mount Charfas of which his spouse beneficielfy owns 50% end 288,000,000
options by Mayford Equlties.

{2) Adam Wilson's shares are held as follows: 138,807,070 personally and 103,147,436 through Mount Charles which is 50% bensficially
owned by him.

{3) Peter Chinnack’s shares are held as follows: 94,500,000 parscnally and 218,051,282 by Alllance Trust Savings Limited.

Further detalls on options can be found in Note 11 {o the Financial Statements.
Environmental Responsibility

The Company recognises that the Group's activities require it to have regard to the potential impact that it and its subsidiary
may have on the environment. Wherever possible, the Company ensures that its subsidiary complies with the local regulatory
requirements with regard fo the environment.

Health and Safety

The Group operates a health and safety programme to ensure the weliness and security of its employees. The control and
eventual elimination of all work related hazards requires a dedicated team effort involving the active participation of all
employees. A comprehensive health and safety programme is the primary means for delivering best practices in health and
safety management. This prograsmme is regularly updated to Incorporate employee suggestions, lessons leamed from past
incidents and new guidelines related to new projects with the aim of identifying areas for further improvement of health and
safely management. Employee involvement is recognised as fundamental in recognising and reporting unsafe conditions
and avolding events that may result in injuries and accidents.

Internal Controls

The Board recognises the importance of both financial and non-financial controls and has reviewed the Group's control
environment and any related shortfalls during the year. Since the Group was established, the Directors are satisfied that,
given the current size and activities of the Group, adequate internal controls have been implemented. Whilst they are aware
that no system can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, in light of the current activity and
proposed future development of the Group, continuing reviews of internal controls will be undertaken to ensure that they are
adequate and effective,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Branches outside the UK
The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries as follows:

+ Coal Contractors (1991) Inc., which owns and operates the Stockton Colliery

=  Aflantic Carbon Group LLC (formerly Luzerne Carbon Company LLC) which wholly owns Hazleton Shaft Corporation

which owns and operates the Hazlston Shaft Mine.

Both subsidiaries are registered and operate in Pennsylvania, USA.
Policy and Practice on Payment of Creditors
The Company and its subsidiary undertaking agree terms and conditions for their business transactions with suppliers.
Payment is then made in accordance with these terms, subject to the terms and conditions being met by the supplier. As at
31 December 2017 the Group had an average of 223 days (2016 - 132 days) purchases outstanding in trade payables.
Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the reporting period are as described in note 2B.
Going Concern
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and, therefore, continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and Financial Statements. Further details on their assumptions and their conclusion thereon are included in
the statement on going concern is included with the Accounting Policies.
Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnity Insurance

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors and Officers. These were
made during the previous period and remain in force at the date of this report.

Provision of Information to Auditor
So far as each of the Directors is aware at the time this report is approved:

+ there is no ralavant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

= the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Independent Auditor
PKEF Littlejohn LLP has signified its willingness to continue in office as auditor.

This report was appraZ bzl/ha Board on 04 May 2018 and signed on its behalf.




ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

‘The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financlal year. Under that law the Direclors have
élected to prepare the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Directors must not approve the Financial
Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and
of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are required te:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

» prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Comnpany will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the Group and Compary, and enable
them to ensure that the Financiai Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are aiso responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company, and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website, www._atlanticcoal.com. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of the Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

This Statement was roved by the Board on 04 May 2018 and signed on is behalf.

Z

Stephen
Managing




ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
For the year ended 3t December 2017

independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Atlantic Carbon Group Pic
Opinion

Woe have audited the financial statements of Atlantic Carbon Group plc (the ‘parent company'} and its subsidiaries (the ‘group')
for the year ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income, the
Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responshbility to anyone, other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion;

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2017 and of the group's and parent company’s loss for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
£U and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belleve that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK} require us to report to you
where;

» the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

= the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group's or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concem basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, othar than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the group and parent company
financial statements does naot cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the cther information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
10
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s the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by sxception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment oblained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us fo report
to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our auwdit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
group and parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal
control as the directors determing is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and
the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors elther intend to liquidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemants

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor's report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: hffp:-//www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Alastalr Roberts {Senior statutory auditor) 1 Waestferry Circus
For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP Canary Wharf
Statutory auditor London E14 4HD

04 May 2018

L2
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GROUP AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Company number: 05315929 Group Company
Mote As =t 31 As at 31 As at 31 Ag at 31
December Dacember Decernber December
2017 2016 2017 2016
$ s $ $
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 49,502,664 54,212,335 - -
Land, coal rights and restoration costs 5 14,123,294 13,898,161 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 6 - - 12,800,683 11,707,469
Investment in joint venture 25 635,484 328,423 - -
Trade and other receivables 7 - - 7,105,207 6,837,043
64,261,442 68,438,919 19,905,890 18,544,512
Current Assets
Inventories 8 13,499,718 6,773,878 - -
Trade and other receivables 7 3,938,519 4,258,337 427178 53,286
Other assets 9 899,066 741,739 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 10 497,849 503,870 9,088 5,447
18,835,152 12,227,825 436,266 58,733
Total Assets 83,096,594 80,716,744 20,342,156 18,603,245
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Parent
and Shareholdars
Share capital 11 7,464,515 6,932,640 7,464,515 6,932,640
Share premium 11 41,709,728 41,320,818 41,709,728 41,329,818
Merger reserve 15,326,850 15,326,850 12,489,738 12,489,738
Reverse acquisition reserve (12,999,288) (12,999,288) - -
Other reserves 12 47,853 44,301 47,853 44,301
Translation reserve {4,245,954) (4,188,794} (9,485,751} (11,104,826)
Retained losses . (46,829,357) (43,988,091) {32,918,210) (31,781,873)
Total Equity 474,347 2,457,436 19,307,873 17,909,798
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 9,488,533 8,309,470 516,826 220,182
Borrowings 14 7,443,807 10,693,389 - -
Proviston for restoration costs 15 15,658 15,658 - -
16,947,998 19,018,517 516,826 220,182
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 14 60,593,367 55,671,663 - -
Trade and other payables 13 408,900 - 517,457 473,265
Provision for restoration costs 15 4,671,982 3,569,128 - =
65,674,249 59,240,7H 517,457 473,265
Total Liabilities 82,622 247 78,259,308 1,034,283 693,447
Total Equity and Liabilities 83,096,594 80,716,744 20,342,156 18,603,245

The Company has elected to take the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from presenting the Parent
Company Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income. The loss for the Parent Company for the year was
$1,163,608 (2016: lass of $4,769,834) and the total comprehensive loss for the year was $455,467 (2016: loss of $8,517,979).

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 04 May 2018 and were signed
on its behalf by:

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 18 to 48 form part of these Financiat Statements
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

GROUP AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Group

For the year For the year

ended 31 ended 31

Becember 2017 December 2016

Continuing operations Note $ s

Revenue 3 31,469,082 26,737,456

Cost of sales 17 {19,843 954) (25,218,347)

Gross Profit 11,625,128 1,519,109

Administration expenses 17 {7,962,021) (10,012,516)

Other gainsflosses 18 114,854 (120,363)

Other income 21 35,420 1,455,094

Operating Profit/(loss) 3,813,381 {7.158,676)

Impaiments 5 - (2,153,957)

Finance Income 192 (2,992)

Finance costs 22 {6,612,702) (3.360,697)

Share of loss from Hazleton Hiller 25 (69,408) {47.885)

Profit/{loss) Before Taxation (2,868,537) {12,724,207)

Income tax expense 23 - -

Profit/(loss) for the Year {2,868,537) {12,724,207)

Profit/{loss) attributable to the owners of the Parent (2,868 537) {12,724 207)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Group

For the year For the year

ended 31 ended 31

Decembar 2017 December 2016

$ $

Profit/(loss) for the year {2,868,537)  (12,724,207)

Other comprehensive income:

Hems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences (57,160) (88,161)

Total comprehensive income/ {loss) for the year (2,925,697) (12,812,368)

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to the (2,925,697) {12,812,368)

owners of the Parent

‘The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 18 to 48 form part of these Financial Statements.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Afttributable to the owners of the parent

Reverse
Share Shars Merger  acquisition Other  Translation Retained
capital premium reserve raserve reserves reserve fosses  Total squity
$ $ $ $ $ $
At 1 January 2016 5,769,335 40,498,386 15,326,850 (12,999,288) 42,801 (4,100,833} (31,313,240) 13,224,811
Profit for the year - - - - - - (12,724,207} (12.724,207)
Other comprehensive
income for the year
Currency translation
differences - - - - - (88,161) - {88,161)
Total comprehensive
Income for the year - - - - - (88,161) (12,724,207) (12,812.368)
:::::lc:eds from share 1,163.305 830,932 _ - - . - 1,884,237
Granting of oplions &
Wty - - - - 50756 - - 50,756
Exercising of options &
warrants - - - - (23,098) - 23,098 -
Expiration of options &
warrants - - - - (26,258) - 26,258 -
Transactions with
owners, recognised 1,163,305 830,932 - - 1,400 - 439,358 2,044,993
directly in equity
At 31 December 2016 6,932,640 41,329,818 15,326,850 (12,999,288} 44,301 {4,188,794) (43,988,091) 2,457,436
At 1 January 2017 6,932,640 41,329,818 15,326,850  {12,000,288) 44,301 {4,188,784)  (43,988,091) 2,457 436
Lass for the year - - - - - - (2,868,537} (2,868,537)
Other comprehensive
income for the year
Currency translation
differences - - - - - (57,180) - {(57,160)
Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - {57,160} {2,868,537)  {2,925,697)
Z;oceeds from share 322,536 230,383 . R R ) . 552,919
ue

Granting of agtions &
worrants - - - - 30823 - - 30,823
Exercising of options & )
wamrants 208,339 149,527 - - (16,360) 16,360 358,866
Expiration of options & _
warrants - - - - (10911) 10,811 -
Transactions with
owners, recognised 531,875 379,910 - - 3,552 - 27,271 942 608
directly in equity
At 31 Dacember 2017 7,464,515 41,709,728 15,326,850  (12,999,288) 47,853  (4,245954) (46,829,357) 474,347

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 18 to 48 form part of these Financial Statements.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to the shareholders

Share Share Morger Other Tranglation Retained
capital Premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total equity
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

At 1 January 2016 5,789,335 40,498,886 12,489,738 42,901 (7,356,681) {27,061,395) 24,382,784
Profit for the year - - N - . (4.769,834) {4,769,834)
Other comprehensive income
for the yaar
Currency transhation differences - - - - {3.748,145) - {3.748,145)
Total comprahensive income
for the year - . - - {3.748,145) {4,769,834) {8,517,979)
Proceeds from share issue 1.163.305 830,932 - - - - 1,994,237
Granting of options & wamants
Exercising of options & .
warrants - - - 50,756 - 50,756
Expiration of options & warrants - - - (23,098) - 23,098 -
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of the 1,163,305 830,932 - 1,400 - 49,356 2,044,993
Cotnpany
As at 31 December 2018 6,932,640 41,329,818 12,488,738 44,301 (11,104,826) {31,781,873) 17,909,798
At 1 January 2017 6,832,640 41,320,818 12,489,738 44,301 (14,104,826) {31.7681,873) 17,908,798
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - (1,163,608) (1,163,608}
Other comprehensive Income
for the year
Currency transiation differences - - - - 1,619,075 - 1,619,075
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 1,619,075 (1,163,808} 455,467
Progeads from share issue 322,536 230,383 - - - - 552,919
Granting of options & warrants - - - 30,823 - - 30,823
Exercising of options &
warrants 209,333 148,627 - (16,360} - 16,360 358,866
Expiration of options & warrants - - - {10,911} - 10,911 -
Tota) contributions by and
distributions to owners of the 531,875 379,910 - 3,652 - 27,271 842 608
Company
As at 31 December 2017 7,464,515 41,709,728 12,489,738 47,853 (9,485,751} {32,918,210] 19,307,873

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 18 to 48 form part of these Financial Statements.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Group
For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
Decemnber 2017 December 2016
Note $ 3
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation (2,868,537) {12,724,207)
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 4 6,236,427 §,270,888
- Mine depletion and mineral depreciation 5 816,977 500,244
- Shars option and warrants expense 30,823 50,756
- impairments - 2,153,957
- Loss on disposaj of property, plant and equipment (8,075) (1.420,594)
- Accretion and accrued restoration costs 359,291 309,553
- Equity settled transactions - 904,698
- Fareign exchange gains {2,426) 268,979
Changes in working capital
- Increase in tracie and other receivables 575,024 {56,650}
- {increasa)decrease in inventories {6,725,839) 1,501,206
- {Decrease)/inctease in trade and other payables 1,658,606 2,441,695
Net cash generated fram/(used) in operating activities 72,271 200,525
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,363,731) (134,616}
Change in deposits 9 (157,327) {474,332)
Capitalised land and plant costs 164,315 (439,244)
Share of loss from joint ventures 25 69,408 47,885
Capftal contribution to joint venture (376,489) -
Cash consideration for subsidiaries - (17.889,087)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment - 2,765,500
Net cash used in investing activities (1,663,804) {16,133,894)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 600,000 1,089,539
Proceeds from borrowings 1,875,000 26,318,174
Repayments of borrowings - (1,150,000}
Interest added to borrowings 369,570 -
Finance lease payments {3,995,092) {2,856,450)
Finance lease refinancing 2,736,034 -
Repayment of loan in subsidiary undertaking - (7,100,921}
Net cash used in financing activities 1,585,512 16,300,342
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {6,021) 366,979
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents - 4,610
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 503,870 132,287
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 457,849 503,870

The Accounting Policles and Notes on pages 18 to 48 form part of these Financial Statements.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Company
For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
December 2017  Decamber 2015
Note $ $
Cash flows from operating actlvities
Profit/(loss) before tax {1,163,608) (4,769,834)
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 4 - 51,441
- Impaiments - 2,153,957
-  Share based payments - 51,824
-  Share option and warrants expense 30,823 50,766
- intercompany management fees {123,696) -
-  Foreign exchange kasses/(gains) 191,736 387,383
Changes in working capital:
- Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 12,675 3.440
- {Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables 296,643 (23,505)
Net cash used in operating activities (755,427) (2.094,538)
Cash flows from investing activitles
Loans to subsidiary 159,068 1,041,763
Interest received - -
Net cash generated from investing activities 159,068 1,041,763
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital £600,000 292,434
Proceeds from borrowings - 733,492
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities €00,000 1,025,926
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3,641 {26,849)
Exchange josses on cash and cash equivalents - 4,610
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,447 27,686
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 9,088 5.447

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 18 to 48 form part of these Financial Statements
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

General Information

The Financial Statements presented are for Aflantic Carbon Group Plc ("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, “the
Group™). The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The principal activity of the Group is the
development and operation of the Stockton Cofliery, which comprises the Stockton and Hazleton Shaft Mine and an anthracite
washing plant in Pennsylvania, USA.

The Company, the legal parent, is a public limited company and incorporated and domiciled in United Kingdom. The address
of its registered office is 200 Strand, London, WC2R 1DJ.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal Accounting Policies applied in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out below. These Policies
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
IFRS Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union and the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The Financial Statements have also been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets to fair value through the profit or loss.

The Financial Statements are presented in US Dollars rounded to the nearest dollar.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s Accounting Policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Financial Statements are disclosed in Note 2.

b) Changes in accounting policy
i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that were effective for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2017 that had a material impact on the Group or Company.

i) New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2017 are
listed below. Uniess stated below, thera are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected
to have a material impact on the Group or Company.

Standard impact on initial application Effective date

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign currency transactions and advanced consideration 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 18 Leases *1 January 2019
IFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based paymenis — classification and measurement 1 January 2018
Annual lmprovements 2014 - 2016 Cycle 1 January 2018
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income 1ax treatments *1 January 2018
IFRS 8 (Amendments) Prepayment features with negative compensation *1 January 2019
IAS 28 {Amendments) Long term interests in associates and joint ventures *1 January 2019

' Subject to EU endorsement

The Group is evaluating the impact of the new and amended standards above. The Directors believe that these new and
amended standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s resuits or shareholders’ funds. There is not
expected te be any significant impact from the introduction of IFRS 15,

The vast majority of the lsase arrangements in the Group are finance in nature and as such IFRS 16 is not expected to
have a material impact.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year endad 37 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {(continued)
c) Basis of Consolidation

The Group Financial Statements consolidate the Financial Statements of Aflantic Carbon Group Pic and the audied
management accounts of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control Is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Company acquired the Stockton Coal Group {consisting of Coal Contractors (1991) Inc, Stockton Anthracite LLC and
Stockton Anthracite LP) on 19 November 2007 through a share exchange. As the sharshoiders of the Stockton Coal Group
had controf of the legal parent, Atlantic Carbon Group Pic, the transaction was accounted for as a reverse acquisition in
accordance with IFRS 3 *Business Combinations™, Consequently, afthough the Financial Statements are prepared in the
name of the legal parent, they are in substance a continuation of those of the legal subsidiaries. The following accounting
treatment was applied in respect of the reverse acquisition:

« the assets and liabilities of the legal subsidiaries within the Stockton Coal Group were and continue to be recognised
and measured in the Consolidated Financial Statements at their pre-combination carrying amounts, without
rastatement 1o fair vaiue;

» the equity structure appearing in the Consolidated Financial Statements reflected and continues to reflact the equity
structure of the legal parent, Atlantic Carbon Group Plc, including the equity instruments issued to effect the business
combination.

The cost of acquisition was measured as the fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities acquired
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus certain costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies were eliminated.

Cn 31 December 2002 the activities of the companies within the Stackton Coal Group were merged into Coal Contactors
(1991) Inc.

Cn 27 May 2016 the Company acquired Aflantic Carbon Group LLC (formerly “Luzerne Carben LLCT), which fully owns
Hazieton Shaft Corporation (*HS") for $18,409,736. HS is registered in the USA and operates an anthracite mine and
processing facility. The cost of acquisition was measured as the fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued
and habilities acquired or assumed at the date of exchange, plus certain costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Inter-
company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies were eliminated.

d} Going Concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group incurred a net loss
of $2,868,537 (2016: net loss of $12,724,207) during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group's and Company’s business activities, together with the factors Ekely to affect their future development, performance
and position are set out in the Strategic Report. In addition, Note 1 to the Financial Statements includes the Group’s and
Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing their capital, their financial risk management objectives and their
exposure to credit risk and Equidity risk.

The Directors have reviewed the cash flow forecast and the fulure requirements of the Group. The review has given
consideration of recent sales, contracts agreed and the recent changes in the economic climate in the expected to lead to a
future up turn of the coal market. The Group has entered in to significant upfront sales agreements for 2018 and thera is also
expected to be increased demand as a result of the US Govermnment's 25% tariff on steel imports from 1 March 2018. The
Company has also renegotiated the interest rate to 9.5% (2016: 9.5%) on its principal loan with White Oak Global Advisors
LLC. This renegotiation included alteration of the loan covenants to less onerous terms. Since the year end, $1million of new
equity has been raised and management are confident that further equity raises will be forthcoming if required. As such, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresesable
future.

The Directors have aiso had due regard of their current debt covenants with their principal lenders, These covenants have

been reviewed alongside the forecasts and the Directors are of the opinion that these covenants will be met and that it remains
appropriate fo continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

e) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been klentified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {continued)
f) Foreign Currencies
{) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Statements of the Group's entities are measured using lhe currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). The functional currency of the UK parent entity is Pound
Sterling and the functional currency of the US subsidiary is US Doflars. The Financial Statements are presented in US Dollars,
rounded to the nearest doflar, which is the Group’s funclional and presentation currency.

{f) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where such tems are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such fransactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign currency gains and lossas, including those relating to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents, are presented in
the income statement within ‘other gains’,

(i} Group companies

The resulls and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)}
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation cumency as
follows:

» assets and liabilities at each year-end are iranslated at the closing rate at the Statement of Financial Position date;,

» income and expenses for each income stalement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are transiated at the dates of the transactions); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income,

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of monetary
itemns receivable from foreign subsidiaries for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeabie future,
are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

g) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less depreciation. Historic cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when ¥ Is probable that future economic benefits assaciated with the item will flow to the
group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other maintenance and repairs are expansed as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-ine method with estimated useful lives substantially as
follows:

Land and buildings Life of mine
Plant and machinery 1 to 20 years
Motor vehicles 21to 7 years
Maps 5 years
Fumiture and equipment 3 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount wherever applicable.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and recognised in the
Income Statement.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

h) Land, Coal Rights and Restoration Cosis

Coa)l land, mine development costs, which inckide directly attributable construction overheads, land and coal rights are
recorded at cost. Coal land and mine development are depleted and amortised, respectively, using the units of production
method, based on estimated recoverable fonnage. The depletion of coal rights and depreciation of restoration costs are
expensed by reference to the estimated amount of coal to be recovered over the expected iife of the operation.

i} Coal Mine Reclamation Costs

Future cost requirements for land reclamation are estimated where surface operations have been conducted, based on the
Group's interpretation of the technical standards of reguiations enacted by the U.S. Office of Surface Mining, as well as
Pennsytvanian State regulations. These costs reiate fo reclaiming the pit and support acreage at surface mines and sealing
portals at deep mines. Other costs include reclaiming refuse and slurry ponds as well as related termination/exit costs.

‘The Group recoerds asset retirement obligations that result from the acquisition, constniction or operation of long-fived assets
at fair value when the fiabfiity is incurred. Upon the initiai recognition of a fiabiiity, that cosl is capitalised as part of the related
long-lived asset and expensed over the useful life of the asset. The asset retirement costs are recorded in Land, Coal Rights
and Restoration Costs — see Note 5.

The Group expenses reclamation costs prior to the mine closure. The establishment of the end of mine reclamation and
closyre liability is based upon permit requirements and requires significant estimates and assumptions, principally associated
with regulatory requirements, costs and recoverable coal lands. Annually, the end of mine reclamation and closure liability is
reviewed and necessary adjustments are made, including adjustments due to mine plan and permit changes and revisions of
cost and production levels to optimize mining and reclamation efficiency. The amount of such adjustments is reflected in the
year end reclamation provision calculation — see Note 15; Provision for Restoration Costs.

j) Financial Assets
Clasgsification

The Group's financial assets comprise loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpese for which the
financial assets were acquired, Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash and
cash aquivalents at the year-end.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date ~ the date on which the Group commits to
purchasing or selfing the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or have been transferred, and the Group has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables are subsequently caried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented in
the income Statement within "Other {LossesVGains” in the period in which they arise.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset, or a group
of financial assets, is impaired. A financial asset, or a group of financial assets, is impaired and impaiment losses are incurred,
only If there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the assets (a “loss event™), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset, or group of financial assets, that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
significant financial difficulty of the Issuer or obligor;
a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments;
+ the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the berrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider,;
» it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence cof impairment exists.
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ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

AGCCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present vaiue of estimated
future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The asset's carmying amount is reduced and the loss is recognised in the income Statement.

if, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of the impaiment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impakment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is racognised in the Income Statement.

impairment of Non-Financlal Assets

The Group assesses whether an asset may be impaired when circumstances indicate that an impairment may exist. If any
such indicator exists, the entity tests the asset for mpairment by estimating the recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying value of the asset, an impaiment loss is required. In addition to this, assets with indefinite lives are
tested for impairment at least annualty.

k) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out {FIFQ)
method. Components of inventories consist of coal, parts and supplies, net of allowance for obsolescence. Coal inventories
represent coal contained in stockpiles, coal that has been mined and hauled to the wash plant (raw coal) for processing and
coal that has been processed (crushed, washed and sized) and stockpiled for shipment to customers.

The cost of raw and prepared coal comprises extraction costs, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated seliing
prica in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

1) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. if collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business If longer), they are
dassified as curent assets. if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initiatly at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

m) Derlvative Financlal instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequerntly re-
measured at their fair value,

n} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, on-demand deposits and bank overdrafts. In the Statement
of Financial Position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in cumrent liabiiities.

o) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

p) Share Based Payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settied, share-based schemes, under which it receives services from employees or
third party suppliers as consideration for equity instruments (options and warrants) of the Group. The Group may also issue
warrants to share subscribers as part of a share placing. The far value of the equity-seltied share based payments is
recognised as an expense in the income statement or charged to equity depending on the nature of the service provided or
instrument issued. The total amount to be expensed or charged is determined by referaence to the fair value of the options
granted:

+ including any market performance conditions;

« excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for exampile, profitability or
sales growth targets, or remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

« including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save).

In the case of warrants the amount charged to the share premium account is determined by reference to the fair value of the

services received if avallable. If the fair value of the services received is not determinable, the warrants are valued by reference
to the fair value of the warrants granted as described previously.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Non-rmarket vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options or warrants that are expected to vest,
The total expense or charge is recognised over the vesting period, which is the peried over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. it recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement or equity as appropriate, with a corresponding adjustment to a separate reserve in
equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

q) Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers, Accounts payable are classified as current Habilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normai
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current Kabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

r} Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. Borrowings are subsequently camied at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction cosis) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or lass over the period of the
borrowings, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting pefiod.

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and are included in finance costs in the Income
statement.

s} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obfigation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settie the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present vaiue of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material). The increase in provisions due to the passage of time is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive loss.

Provision for Asset ratirement obligation

The Group has also recorded an asset retirernent obligation for ifs current mining operation for costs to reclaim the site when
mining is completed.

The amourt provided for restoration of a site previously mined by the Group and currently being restored is based on an
independent third party appraisal of current costs ta reclaim the site. The liability for the total estimated restoration cosis is
adjusted as estimates are revised,

The third party appraisal of reclamation costs reviews site specific information related to total cublc yards of material required
to be placed at the mine, support area restoration and lotal acres to be re-seeded. Costs are derived from recent
Pennsylvanian State mine reclamation project bids by qualified contractors, Pennsylvanian State Bond Rates required for
annual recalculation of reclamation bonds and comparable company reclamation projects.

The provision for future asset retirement obligations is the best estimate of the present value of the expenditure required to
settie the rehabilitation obligation at the reporting date, based on current legal and other requirements and technology. Future
costs are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimate are reflected in the present value of the provision at each
reporting date.

The initial estimate of the provision refating to exploration, development and production faciities is capitalised into the cost of
the related asset and depreciated or amortised on the same basis as the related asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

t) Leases

The Group leases certain plant and equipment. Leases of plant and equipment where the Group has substantially al the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised on the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease paymaent is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in long-term borrowings. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. Assets obtained under finance leases are depraciated over their useful ives.

u} Employee Benefits
The Group sponsors a 401(K) savings and retirement defined contribution plan for substantially all employees based in the

USA. The plan matches voluntary contributions of participants up to a maximum contribution based upon a percentage of a
participants’ salary with an additional matching contribution possible at the discretion of the Group.

“The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to service in current and prior years. Agreed contributions are charged to the Income
Statement as they become payable.

v} Revenus Recognition

Revenue comprises sales to customers of coal and other aggregate bi-products produced by the Group. It is measured at the
fair value of consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods and services supplied net of
sales taxes, returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be refiably measured and when It is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity. Revenue from the sale of coal is recognised at the time delivery occurs and title
passes to the customer, which is either upon shipment or upon customer receipt of coal based on contractual terms. Also,
the sale price must be determinable and collection reasonably assured.

w)} Taxation

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

x} Exceptional tems

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the Financial Statements where it is necessary to do sc to provide further
understanding of the financial performance of the Group. They are material items of expense that have been shown
separately due to their significance and nature.
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1. Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Market Risk
a} Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US
Doliar and Pound Sterling. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions denominated in a foreign
currency. The Group maintains bank accounts in these currencies to reduce its exposure to this risk. The volume of
transactions is not deemed sufficient to enter into forward contracts.

b) Fair value interest risk

The Group has both interest-bearing assets and liabilities. Interest-bearing assets include only cash balances, all of which
eamn interest. The Group has a policy of maintaining the majority of its debt at a fixed rate to ensure certainty of future
interest cash flows. The effect of fluctuations in rates on debt at variable rates is not expected to have a material effect.
Thus the Group is only exposed to fair value interest rate risk, which is not expected to have a significant impact on profit
or loss or equity.

c) Price Risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk as a result of its operations. However, given the size of the Group's
operations, the costs of managing exposure to commodity price risk exceed any potential bensfits. If thera had been any
changes in individual commaodity prices at the year-end date they would not have had any significant effect upon profit or
loss or equity.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivaients as well as exposure to customers including outstanding receivables.
The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made.
Whaere debt finance is utilised, this is subject to pre-approval by the Board of Directors. The amount of exposure to any
individual counterparty is subject to a limit, which is reassessed annually by the Board. The Group considers the credit
ratings of banks in which it halds funds in order to reduce exposure to credit risk. All of the Group's cash at bank is heid
with institutions with an A or AA credit rating.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting pericd, and management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity Risk

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance that is designed to ensure that it has
sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions.

The following table analyses the Group's financial abilities, which will be setiled on a net basis, into relevant maturity
groupings, based on the remaining period to maturity at the year-end date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash ows:

Between 1 and 2 Betwesn 2 and 5
At 31 December 2017 Less than 1 year years years Over 5 years
Borrowings 3,150,000 4,200,000 21,059,847 -
Finance lease liabilities 4,293,807 4,485,082 30,848,436 -
Trade and cther payables 8,488,533 - 408,900 -
Batween 1 and 2 Between 2 and §
At 31 December 2016 Less than 1 year yoaArs years Over 5 yowrs
Borrowings 4,865,871 2,100,000 19,199,409 -
Finance lease liabilities 5,827,518 7,655,343 23,064,857 3,652,055
Trade and other 8,309,470 - - -
payables
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1. Financia) Risk Management (continued}

Capitai Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, in
order to provide future retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industiry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is caleulated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘cumrent and non-current
borrowings' as shown in the Statement of Financial Position less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as ‘equity’ as shown in the Statement of Financial Position pius net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

As at As at

31 Decamber 2017 31 December 20116

$ s

Total Borowings (note 14) 68,037,174 66,365,052
Less: cash and cash equivalents {note 10) (497,849} (503,870)
Net debt 67,539,325 65,861,182
Total equity 474,347 2,457,436
Total capital 68,013,672 68,318,618
Gearing ratio 1% 4%
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2. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Eabilities and disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of expenses during the year. Actual results may vary from
the estimates used to produce the Financiat Statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based con historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include, but are not imited to:
Valuation of provision for restoration costs

The Group’s provision for restoration costs has a camying value at 31 December 2017 of $4,67 1,982 (2016: $3,584,786)
and relate to the Group's reclamation obligations at the Gowen and Stockion mines.

The Group cbtained a third party estimate of the expected costs of reclamation from an independent consultant. The third
parly appraisal of reclamation costs reviews site specific Information refated to total cubic yards of material required to
be placed at the mine, support area restoration and total acres to be re-seeded. Costs are derived from recent
Pennsylvanian State mine rectamation project bids by quaiified contractors, Pennsyivanian State Bonding Rates required
for annual recalculation of reclamation bonds and comparable company reclamation projects.

For the Stockton mine this estimate was based on the anticipated future size of the mine pit at the completion of the
mine’s life, Reclamation is akeady taking place at the Gowen site and, therefore, the estimation is based on the Group’s
remaining obligations. See Note 15 for further details.

The costs of reclamation are calculated on a cubic yard basis and taking into account Pennsylvanian State Bonding
Rates, comparable reclamation projects and historical data from the Group’s existing reclamation activities. For the
Stockton mine Management increases reclamation costs estimates at an annual inflation rate io the anticipated future
mine closure date. This infiation rate is based on the historical rate for the industry for a comparable period and further
details are given in Note 16. The future reclamation provision is discounted to its present value based on the Group's
incremental cost of borrowing. If the actual inflation rate for the industry was 2% higher or 2% lower than Management's
estimates, the carrying value of accrued restoration costs at 31 December 2017 would be approximately $1,976,738
higher or $73,123 lower respectively.

Valuation of coal inventory

The amount of coal held in inventory in the Group's Financial Statements st 31 December 2017 has a carrying value of
$13,499,718 (2016: $6,773,879). The Group values inventory in accordance with the stated accounting policy. The
tonnage of coal included within coal inventory at the year-end date is estimated by an independent third party. The
estimate of tonnage is based on survey data and sample densities of the year end coal piles.

Impairment of investment in subsidiary

The Company's investment in its subsidiary has a camying value at 31 December 2017 of $12,800,683 (2016:
$11,707,459).

Management tests annually whether the investment in subsidiary has future economic value in accordance with the
accounting policies. The investment is subject to an annual impairment review by an independent consultant, This review
calculates the net present value of future cash flows of the subsidiary’s operations over the life of the Stockton mine,
which is the subsidiary’s main cash generating asset. The review takes into consideration constant long term coal prices,
anticipated resource volumes, sales volumes and costs of production as well as supply and demand outlook. The
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the Company's cost of capital in order to determine
the recoverable amount of the mine.

Fair value of the acquisition of Hazleton Shaft Corporation

The cost of acquisition was measured as the fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities
acquired or assumed at the date of exchange, plus certain costs directly atiributable to the acquisition. The fair value of
the assets was determined by reference to an independent evaluation of the assels acquired, The asset appraisal was
then used as a basis upon which to allocate a falr value to the property, plant and equipment and assets in the ground
acquired.
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3. Segmental information

Management has determined the operating segments based on reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are used
to make strategic decisions, During the ysar the Group had interests in two geographical segments, the United Kingdom
and the United States of America ("USA"). Adtivities in the UK are mainly administrative in nature whilst the aclivities in

the USA relate to coal production and saile of coal.

The reportable operating segments derive their revenue from the sale of prepared coal to industrial and retail customers.

For the year ended 31 Dacamber 2017 For the year ended 31 Dacember 2016
Intra- Intra-

usa UK pegment Total uSA UK agment Totsi

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

mmm" 31,469,082 . - 31,460,082 26737456 . - 26,737 456
Groas profit 11,625,128 - - 11,625,128 1,519,109 - - 1,519,108
Operating profit/{loss) 4,976,989 (1,183,608) . 3,813,381 (4,399,168) (2,512,625) (146,8885) (7.158,578)
Depreciation 6,236,427 - . 6,236,427 6,219,447 51,441 - 6,270,888
Dapletion 816,977 - - 816,977 500,244 - - 500,244
M2A Expenses - - - - 1,923,121 - - 1,923,131
Capltaised overburden 2,675,499 - - 3,679,499 - - - -
EBITDA* 15,705,892 (1,163,608} - 14,546,284 4,243,656 (2,561,184} (146,835) 1,535,587
Capitai expenditure 2318107 - - 2318107 42,308,927 - - 42,308,927
Total assels 90,878,337 20,342,156 (28,123,899} 83,008,594 88,806,612 18,603,245 (26,683,113} B0, 716,744
Totat abilities 89,442,027 1,034,284 (7.854,884) 82,622,247  85.735,600 220,182 (7.696,474) 78,258,308

¥ EBITDA in 2016 was adjusied for the one off transaction cosis of $1,923, 131 associated with the acquisition of Hazleton Shaft Corporation, In 2017,

EBITDA has been adjusted for the overburden removal costs incumed.

A reconciliation of operating loss to loss before taxation is provided as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

$ s
Operating profit{loss) for reportable segments 2813381 Ty
ance nt - (2,153,957}
impaiments
Fhm Icoass ° 192 (2,992)
- {6,612,702) (3.360,697)
Share of loxs from Hazieton Hiller (e9.408) €7 558)
Profit/(joss) before tax (2,868,537 {12,724,207)

Information about major customers

On the basis of a cut off of $1 million, revenues of approximately $21.2 milion (2016: $13.19 million) were derived from

four (20186; four) external customers. These revenues were all generated in the USA,
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group
Fumniture
Land and Plant and Motor and
buildings machinery vehicles Maps  eguipment Total
$ $ $ $ $ $

Cost
As at 1 January 2016 1,497,427 36,067,903 758,061 296,040 171,794 38,791,225
Additions 915498 41,013,769 252,198 - 127,462 42,308,927
Fair value uplit on acquisition - 5,393,607 - - - 5,393,607
Disposals - (4,578,697) (164,511) - - (4,743,208)
Exchange differences - - - (49,259) (4,222) {53,481)
As at 31 December 2016 2,412,925 77,896,582 845,748 246,781 295,034 81,697,070
Additions 497,156 1,666,503 98,538 - 55,910 2,318,107
Disposals - (844,619) (29,104) - - (873,723)
Exchange differences - - - 23,043 1,975 25,018
As at 31 December 2017 2,910,081 78,718,466 915,182 269,824 352,919 83,166,472
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2016 683,192 10,335,034 457,549 239,874 92,423 14,818,072
Charge for the year 233,015 5,872,534 87,031 51,441 26,867 6,270,888
Acquisition related 217,303 12,438,700 122,636 - 54,309 12,832,948
Disposals - {3,269,405) (120,012) - - {3,389,417)
Exchange differences - - - (44,534) (4.222) {48,756)
As at 31 December 2016 1,133,510 25,377,863 557,204 246,781 169,377 27,484,735
Charge for the year 131,121 5,871,964 97.546 - 35,796 6,236,427
Disposals - {63,546) {18,826) - - (82,372)
Exchange differences - - - 23,043 1.875 25,018
As at 31 December 2017 1,264,631 31,286,281 635,924 269,824 207,148 33,663,808
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2016 1,279,415 52,518,719 288,543 - 125,657 54,212,335
As at 31 December 2017 1,645450 47,432,185 279,258 - 145,771 49,502,664

The Group leases various vehicles and machinery under non-cancellable finance lease agreements, The lease terms
are between 1 and 6 years, and ownership of the assets lie within the Group. The net book value of assets under finance
leases is $35,068,428 (31 December 2016: $37,164,209).

Depreciation expense of $6,285,392 (2016: $6,270,888) has been charged in ‘cost of sales’.
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Company
Furniture and
Maps squipment Total
$ $ $

Cost
As at 1 January 2016 296,040 25,375 321,415
Exchange differences (49,259) (4,222) {53.481)
As at 31 December 2016 246,781 21,153 267,934
Exchange differencas 23,043 1,975 25,018
As at 31 December 2017 269,824 23,128 292,952
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2016 239,874 25,375 265,249
Charge for the year 51,441 - 51,441
Exchange differences {44,534) (4,222) {48,756)
As at 31 December 2016 246,781 21,183 267,934
Charge for the year - - -
Exchange differances 23,043 1,975 25,018
As at 31 December 2017 269,824 23,128 292,952
Net Book Value

As at 31 December 2016 - - -

As at 31 December 2017 - - -
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5. Land, Coal Rights and Restoration Costs

Railway Hazleton surtace and Other
Stockton  relocation Shalt Jeansville mineral axploration
mine costs costs cost cost costs Wet Slopes assets Total
$ $ $ ] ] $ $ $

Cost
As at 1 January 4,918,114 3,198,727 - - 3,550,000 - 6,000,000 17,666,841
2018
Adith - - . 4,581, - - - \

864,737 581,523 5,246,260
Fair valus uphft on - - - - 8915412 - - 8,915,412
Retirement (607,084) (798,429) (267.019)  (1.641,699) (900,617} - - (4,215,848)
obligation astimate
fmpairment / Loan - - - B - - (6.00(,000) {6.000,000)
write off
As at 31 4,311,030 2,399,298 397,718 2,939,824 11,564,795 - - 21,612,665
December
2018
Additions - - - - - 208,547 - 208,547
Retirement 48,477 26,979 170,706 467,608 29,783 - - 743,563
obiigstion estimats
Impaimment / Loan - - - - - - - .
write off
As ot 31 4,359,507 2,426,277 568,424 3,407,432 11,594,588 298,547 - 22,654,775
December 2017
Mine depietion
and mineral
depreciation
As at 1 January 4,081,409 938,941 - - 2,193,910 - - 7.214,260
2018
Chamge for the yeasr 37,008 126,849 - 270,823 85,7684 - - 500,244
As st 31 December 4,118,417 1,085,790 - 16,623 2,250,674 - - 7.714,504
2018
Charge for the year 63,135 437,085 - 196,843 119,804 - - 816,977
As at 31 4,181,552 1,502,885 - 467,586 2,379,478 - - B,531,481
December 2017
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 192,613 1,333,508 397,718 2,669,201 9,305,121 - - 13,898,161
2016
As at 31 177,955 923,392 568,424 2,930,366 9,215,110 208,547 - 14,123,294
December 2017

The retirement and depreciation provision for the Stockton, Hazleton and Jeansville mine property is calculated using
current cost estimates provided by an independent third-party consultant.
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6. Investment in Subsidiaries

Company

As at 31 December  As at 21 December

2017 2016

Shares in Group Undertaking $ 3
At 1 January 11,707,469 14,044,351
Additions in the year - *
Reversal of impairmert - -
Foreign cumency translation 1,093,214 {2,336,882)
At 31 December 12,800,683 11,707,469

investments in Group undertakings are stated at cost less impairment.
Details of Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Share capital Share

Country of held by capital held
Name of subsidiary incorporation Parent by Group Principal activities
Coal Contractors (1991), Inc. USA 100% 100% Anthracite mining and processing
The Pennsylvanian Anthracite :
Company LLC UsA Nil 100% Dormant
Atlantic Carbon Group LLC USA Nil 100% Holding
Hazleton Shaft Corporation USA NH 100% Anthracite mining and processing
Hazleton Hiller LLC USA Nil 50% Anthracite processing

The registered office of all subsidiary undertakings is Stockton Mine, 100 Hazlebrook Road, PO Box 39, Hazleton,

Pennsylvania, 18201,

Impairment review

An impairment review of the investment in Coal Contractors (1981), Inc and Hazleton Shaft Corporation. is carried out on
an annual basis in order to ensure that it is valued at the lower of cost and recoverable amourt. The main asset of the
Company's subsidiaries is the Stockton mine and Hazleton Shaft mine. The vaiue of the investment will naturally decline

over the lifa of the mine as coal reserves are extracted.

The recovarable amount of the investment in Coal Contractors (1991), Inc and Hazleton Shaft Corporation has been
determined based on value in use calculations prepared by an Independent third party. These calculations use pre-tax
cash-flow projections based on financial budgets approved by Management covering the useful fife of the estimated
resource at the Stockton mine and Hazleton Shaft Mine. Management compares the recoverable amount resulting from
the calculations to the camrying value of the investment, after accounting for the recovery of the inter-company loan
balance, to determine whether an impairment charge is required. For the year ended 31 December 2017 there was no

impairment required.
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7. Trade and Other Receivables

Group Company
As at 31 Asat 31 As at 31 As ot 31
December  December Decembar Decomber
2017 2016 2017 2018
$ 4 $ 3
Trade receivables 3,806,646 4,169,375 - -
Less: provision for mpairment of trade receivables {405,081) (315,975) - -
Trade receivables net 3,401,565 3,853,400 129,515 -
Other receivables 266,542 19,881 264,732 7,682
Prepayments 136,617 256,537 13,616 33,401
VAT receivable 19,316 12,203 19,318 12,203
Loans to related parties (Note 26} 114,479 116,316 7,105,207 6,837,043
3,838,519 4,258,337 7.532,385 6,890,328
Less non-curent portion - - {7,105,207) (6,837,043)
Current portion 3,938,519 4,258,337 427,178 53,286

The fair value of all current receivables is as stated above. Non-current receivables have no fixed date of repayment and
as such the Directors believe a calculation of a reliable estimate of their fair value cannot be made at the Statement of

Financial Position date.

Group

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of $2,574,751 {2016: $2,066,132) were fully performing.

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of $677,824{2016: $1,528,646) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of these receivables

is:
As at 31 As at 31

December 2017 December 2016

$ 3

Up to 3 months 386,481 1,316,547
3 to 6 months 33,799 127,802
6 10 12 months 257,544 84,297
Total 677,824 1,528,646

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of $685,942 {2016; $574,595) were past 12 months due. The amount of the
provision was $405,081 as of 31 December 2017 (2016: $315,975). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate
to customers who are in unexpectedly difficult economic circumstances.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

As at 31 As at 31

December 2017  December 2016

$ $

Over 12 months 685,942 574,595
Total 685,942 574,595
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7. Trade and Other Receivables {continued)

The creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables has been included in administration expenses in the
incoma statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group's and Company’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following

curmencies:

Group Company

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

Decomber December December December

2017 2016 2017 2016

$ $ $ $

US doflar 3,640,857 4,205,051 - -

UK pound 297,662 53,286 7,532,385 6,890,329

Total 3,938,519 4,258,337 7,532,385 6,890,329

8. Inventories

Group Company

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 Az at 31

December December December December

2017 2016 2017 20186

$ $ $ $

Coal 13,378,823 6,653,984 - -

Supplies 119,895 119,885 . -

13,499,718 6,773,879 - -

The value of inventories recognised as a debit and included in cost of sales was $8,512,202 (31 December 2016: expense
of $3,235,645).

9. Other assets

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December Cecember b b D b
20%7 2016 2017 20186
$ $ $ $
Caertificatas of deposit 899,066 741,738 - -

The Group has provided certificates of deposit as collateral to secure mine reclamation obligations as required by the
Pennsylvanian Department of Environmental Protection. The cerlificates are not released until the underlying
reclamation obligations have been completed by the Group to the satisfaction of the Department of Environmental
Protection. Sae also Note 24: Commitments.
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10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December Decembar December
2017 2016 2017 2016
$ $ $ $
Cash at bank and in hand 497,849 503,870 9,088 5,447
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank 497,849 503,870 9,088 5,447
overdrafts)
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:
Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December Dacember
2017 2016 2017 2016
$ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents 497,849 503,870 9,088 5,447
11. Share Capitat and Share Premium
Authorised Number £
Ordinary shares of 0.07p each 20,000,000,000 14,000,000
There has been no movement in the authorised share capital during the year,
Group and Company
Ordinary Share
Number of shares premium Total
Issued shares s $ $
At 1 January 2016 4,912,538,502 5,769,335 40,498,886 46,268,221
At 31 December 2016 6,259,371,836 6,932,640 41,329,818 48,262,458
Shares issued - March 2017 341,530,055 322,536 230,383 552,919
Options Exercised — November 2017 221,666,666 209,339 149,527 358,866
At 31 December 2017 6,822,568,557 7,464,515 41,709,728 49,174,243
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11. Share Capital and Share Premium {continued)

Share options and warrants

Share options and warrants outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Shares
Exercise price in
Grant date Expiry date £ par share 2017 2046
24 January 2013 24 Jaruary 2018 0.0075 263,157,894 263,157,894
4 December 2014 3 December 2017 0.0018 - 109,724,137
22 June 2016 21 June 2026 0.0012 129,666,667 288,000,600
12 June 2017 12 June 2027 0.0012 116,208,040 -
30 June 2017 30 June 2027 0.0012 449,988,682 -

959,021,283 660,882,031

The options and warrants are exercisable starting immediately from the date of grant and lapse between two and five
years from the date of grant. The Company and Group have no legal or constructive obligation to settle or repurchase

the options in cash.

The fair value of the share options was determined using the Black Scholes valuation model. A reconciliation of options
granted and lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are shown below:

2017 2016
Waighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price (£) Numnber price [£)
Outstanding as at 1 January 660,882,031 0.0033 374,080,510 0.0058
Granted 629,530,055 0.0012 576,000,000 0.0012
Exercised (221,666,666) 0.0012 (288,000,000) 0.0012
Lapsed (1098,724,137) 0.0033 {1,198,479) 0.0058
Outstanding as at 31 December 959,021,283 0.0029 660,882,031 0.0033
Exercisabie at 31 December 959,021,283 0.0029 660,882,031 0.0033

The total fair value of the options and warrants granted in the current year resulted in a charge of $30,823 (2016: $50,756)

to the Consoplidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2017 2016
Welghted Weighted Weighted ~ Weighted
average average averape average
Weighted remaining remaining Weighted remaining  remaining
Range of average life life average fife life
exarcise exercise Numbar of expscted contracted exercise Number of expected contracted
prices (£) price {£) shares {yesrs) {years) piice {E£) shares (years) {years)
0-0.01 0.0029 959,021,283 6.315 6.81% 0.0033 650,882,031 1.146 1.1486
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12. Other Reserves

Group and Company Share option
reserve Total
$ s
At 1 January 2016 42,901 42,901
Issue of share options and warrants (Note 11) 50,756 50,756
Expiration of options {26,258) (26,258)
Options Exercised {23,098) (23,098)
At 31 December 2016 44,301 44,301
Issue of share options and warrants (Note 11} 30,823 30.823
Expiration of options (10,911) {10,911}
Options Exercised (16,360) (16,360}
At 31 December 2017 47,853 47,853
13. Trade and Other Payables
Group Company
Asat 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
2017 2016 2017 2016
$ $ $ $
Trade payables 4,869,393 3,630,386 215,925 160,874
Other payables 2,013,735 2,076,030 - -
Payroll, social security and other taxes 41,196 3,232 32,763 10,413
Accrued expenses 2,564,209 2,580,822 268,138 48,895
9,488,533 8,309,470 516,826 220,182
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13. Trade and Other Payables(continued)

Non-current
Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December Descambar December
2017 2016 2017 2016
$ H $ s
Loans from related parties (Note 26) - - 517,457 473,265
Other creditors 408,500
408,500 - 517,457 473,265
14. Borrowings
Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 Asat 31 As at 31
Deacember Decamber Decembesr Decamber
2017 2016 2017 2016
$ $ $ s
Non«Current
Debentures and other loans 25,259,847 21,285,408 - -
Finance lease liabilities 35,333,520 34,372,255 - -
60,593,367 55,671,663 - -
Current
Debentures and cther loans 3,150,000 4,865,871 - -
Finance lease liabilities 4,293 807 5,827,518 - -

7,443,807 10,693,389 - -

At 31 December 2017, debentures and other loans inciude secured liabilities of $68,037,174 (31  December 2016:
$29,200,843). The loan was secured on specific plant and machinery owned by of the Group and was repayable within
3 years,

The fair value of cutrent bomowings equals their carrying amounts, as the impact of discourtting is not significant.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current borrowings are:

Carrying amount Fair value
As ut 3 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December Dscember December
2017 2018 2017 2016
$ $ $ $
Debenture and other loans 25,259,847 21,299,408 21,397,095 16,313,388
Finance lease liabilities 35,333,520 34,372,255 26,719,231 18,057472

60,583,367 55,671,663 48,116,326 32,370,860

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using the borrowing rate of 7.83% (2016: 9.81%), which represents
the cost of capital of the Group.



ATLANTIC CARBON GROUP PLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017

14. Borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following cumrencies:

Group
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2017 2016
$ 1
US dollar 68,037,174 66,365,052
Total 68,037,174 66,365,052
Finance Lease Liabilities
Lease kabilities are effectively secured, as the rights to the leased asset revert to
the lessor in the event of default.
Group
As at 31 As at 31
D b Decemb
2017 2016
$ $
Finance lsase liabilities — minimum lease payments
- ho later than one year 5,728,177 7,731,884
- later than one year and no later than five years 39,440,605 34,986,862
- later than five years 5,736 3,749,435
45,172,518 46,478,181
Future finance charges on finance leass liabilities {5,545,191) (6,278.411)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 39,627,327 40,199,770
The present value of finance lease fiabifities is as follows:
Group
As at 31 As al 31
December December
2017 2016
$ $
No later than one year 4,293,807 5,627,518
Later than one year and no later than five years 35,325,858 30,720,198
later than five years 7,662 3,652,054
Present value of finance lease liabilities 39,627,327 40,199,770
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15. Provision for Restoration Costs

Group
As at 31 As at 31
Decembar December
2017 2016
$ $
Non-Current
Stockion (see below) 1,790,676 1,521,521
Hazleton Shaft (see below) 2,881,306 2,047,607
4,671,982 3,569,128
Current
Gowen (see below) 15,658 15,658
15,658 15,658
Total reclamation costs 4,687,640 3,584,786
Gowen total costs
As at 1 January 15,658 50,420
Expense reclamation costs cffset - (34,762)
As at 31 December 15,658 15,658
Stockton fotal costs
As at 1 January 1,521,521 3,484,337
Accration 269,155 344,315
Decrease in estimated reclamation liability . (2,307,131)
As at 31 December 1,790,676 1,521,521
Hazleton Shaft total costs
As at 1 January 2,047,607 3,956,325
Accretion 833,699 -
Decrease in estimated reclamation liability - {1,808,718)
2,881,306 2,047,607

As at 31 December

The asset provision for the Stockton mine property is calculated using current cost estimates provided by an independent
third party consultant. The current cost estimates are applied to the required reclamation activities up to the dale of
closure of the mine, The cost estimates are increased at 1.34% (2016: 2.35%) for Stockton and 4.91% for Jeansvilie
(2016: 4.96%) annually to the anticipated future mine closure date. The escafation factor was derived from the prior 10
year average increase for Stockton and 15 year average for Jeansville. in the US Producer Price Index for Anthracite
praducers. The future reclamation cost value is discounted by 7.83% (2016: 9.81%) {incremental cost of borrowing) to

arrive at the recorded rectamation liability.
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16. Financial nstruments by Category

Group - 31 December 2016 Loans and
Assets per Statement of Financial Position receivables Total
Trade and other receivables {excluding
prepayments) 4,001,800 4,001,800
Cash and cash equivalents 503,870 503,870
4,505,670 4,505,670
Group - 31 Dacember 2016 At amortised
Lisbilities per Statemant of Financlal Position cost Total
Borrowings {excluding finance leases) 26,165,278 26,165,278
Finance lease kabilities 40,199,774 40,199,774
Trade and other payables {excluding non-
financial babiities) 7,798,812 7,798,812
Total 74,163,864 74,163,864
Group - 31 December 2017 Loans snd
Assets per Statement of Financial Position receivables Total
Trade and other receivables (excluding 3 801.802 3.801.902
prepayments} .801, ,801,
Cash and cash equivalents 497,849 497,849
4,299 751 4,299,751
Group - 31 Decembar 2017 At amortised
Liabilities per Statement of Financial Position cost Total
Borrowings {excluding finance leases) 28,408,847 28,920,506
Finance lease fiabilities 39,627,327 39,625,369
Trade and other payables (excluding non-
financiat liabilities) 7,333,224 7,333,224
Total 75,370,398 75,370,398
Company - 31 December 2016 Loans snd
Assets por Statement of Financial Position receivables Total
Trade and other receivables {excluding & 28 6.856.928
prapayments) 856,9 ,856,
Cash and cash equivalents 5,447 5,447
Total 6,862,375 6,862,375
Company - 31 December 2016 At amortisad
Liabifities per Statement of Financial Position cost Total
Borrowings - -
Trade and other payables (exciuding non-
financial kabilties) 693.447 693,447
Total 693,447 693,447
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Company - 31 December 2017 Loans and
Assotx par Statement of Financial Position recaivables Total
;’::: m‘;‘e’ receivables {excluding 7,518,768 7,518,769
Cash and cash equivalents 9,088 9,088
Total 7,527,857 7,527,857
Company - 31 Decambaer 2017 At amortised
Liabilities par Statement of Financial Position cost Total
Borrowings - -
;:;:t:: i:'n;.l acl;t;'_lnei;sp)ayables {excluding non- 766,145 766,145
Total 766,145 766,145
17. Expenses by Nature
Group
For the year ended For the year anded
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
$ $
Staff and related costs (Note 19) 7,761,669 7,940,718
Other staff related costs 1,922,118 2,605,883
Dapraciation, depletion and impaiment charges 6,236,427 6,270,888
Reclamation costs 816,977 623,781
Fuel and oil 3,712,976 2,419,524
Blasting 3,550,387 1,321,582
Rental expenses 225,042 248,737
Royalties 1,790,113 859,070
Maintenance 2,872,854 2,384,554
Coal transport 191,498 584,027
Mine fire expense 420,968 528,782
Insurance 446,046 481,747
MBA Expenses 63,952 1,361,016
Supplies 430,432 1,826,458
Consulting fees 1,524,814 1,673,113
Inventory movement {8,512,202) 1,563,795
Utilities 960,874 795,564
Other expenses 3,391,030 1,740,624
Total cost of sales, administration and other expenses 27,805,975 35,230,863
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17. Expenses by Nature (continued)

During the year, the Group (including overseas subsidiaries) obtained the foliowing services from the Company's

auditor and its associates:

Group

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

$ %

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of
the Parent Company and the Consolidated Financial Statements 35,000 32,000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other

services:
- The audit of the Company’s subsidiary 62,000 60,000
- Tax compliance services 4,000 4,000
- Other assurance services 27,500 27,560

18. Other gains/(losses)

Group
For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
December 2017  Decamber 2016
$ $
Net foreign exchange gains {4,734) (69,607)
Share option expense (30,823} (50,756)
Other gains 150,411 -
114,854 (120,383)
19. Employees
Group Company
For the year For the year Forthe ysar  For the year
ended 31 ended 31 ended 34 ended 31
Decambar Deceimber Dacember December
Staff Costs (including Executive Directors) 2017 2016 2017 2016
$ $ $ $
Wages and salaries 7,141,024 7,322,840 348,025 734,013
Social security costs 572,916 580,253 25,876 -
Pensions — defined contribution plan 47,129 37,625 32,146 33,456
7,761,669 7,840,718 406,047 767,469
Group

For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
Average Number of Employees (including Executive Director) Dw"'z‘ob:; Dmg'&esf
Directors 4 4
Administration 15 8
Coal miners 104 98
Total average headcount 123 84
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20. Directors' Remuneration

Directors' Fees Company pension Other empioyment Total
contributions banefits
For the For the
For the year ywar For the
For the year  For the year year ended ended yaar Forthe year  For the year
ended 31 Dec ended 31 ended 31 31 Dec 31 Dec ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
2017 Dec 2016 Dec 2017 2016 2017 Dec 2016 Dec 2017 Dec 2016
H $ $ $ $ $ $
Adam Wilson 507,994 649,141 . - 4,927 268,297 512,921 917,438
Peter 92,772 107,608 . - - B 92,772 107,608
Chinneck
Stephen Best 154,620 374,821 30,924 32,537 - - 185,544 407,358
George 571,367 347,636 - - - - 571,367 347,638
Roskos
4,326,753 1,479,206 30,924 32,537 4,927 268,297 1,362,604 1,780,040
21. Other Income
Group
For the year For tha year
ended 31 ended 31
December December
2017 2016
$ $
Profit on disposal of proparty, plant and equipment 35,420 1,455,094
35,420 1,455,094
22. Finance Costs
Group
For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
December December
2017 2016
$ 3
Interest Expensea:
Finance leases 2,700,257 880,968
Other borrowings 3,912,444 2,479,729
6,612,701 3,360,697
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23. Income Tax Expense

Group
For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
Deacember Deacamber
2017 2016
$ $
Profit/(Loss} before tax {2,868,537) (12,724,207)
Tax at the applicable rate of 28.51% (2015: 35.88%) {988,303) (4,565,445)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - 203,354
Tax losses utilised - -
Net tax effect of losses camied forward 988,303 4,362,091

Income tax charge

No tax charge or credit arises on the loss for the year.

The tax rate used is a combination of 19% {2018: 20%) standard rate of corporation tax in the UK, 35% (2016: 34%) US
federal tax rate and 10% (2016:10%) Pennsylvania state tax rate for the Stockton Coal Group, {o give an applicable rate

of 34.45% (2016: 35.88 %).

The Group has tax losses of approximately $39,826,607 (2016: $38,838,304) available to carry forward against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in view of the uncertainty over the timing of future taxable
profits against which the losses may be offset.

24. Commitments

The Group has provided certificates of deposit as collateral to secure mining bonds required to provide mine reclamation
cbligations. The certificates will not be released until the underlying reclamation obligations have been completed by the
Group to the satisfaction of the Pennsylvanian Depariment of Environmental Protection. See Note 9 for further details.
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25,

26,

Investment in Joint Venture

©n 5 August 2013 Hazleton Shaft Corporation acquired a 50% equity interest in Hazleton Hiller. Hazleton Hifler is an
anthracite washing plant located in Hazleton, Pennsylvania. The Group's investment in Hazleton Hiller remains a key

part of its plans to expand its operations.

Hazleton Hiller is accounted for as an joint venture because, while Atlantic Carbon Group plc has significant influence
over Hazleton Hiller, it does not have control, only receives a 50% share of the return on investment, has 50% voting

rights and it is accounted for on an equity accounting basis.

The carrying value of the investment in the joint venture is determined as follows:

Group
As af 31 As at 31
December December
2017 2016
$ 3
Opening balance 328,423 376,308
Share of loss in joint venture (69,408) (47.885)
Capital contributions 376,469 -
635,484 328,423
The Groups share of Hazleton Hiller's result for the vear was $69,408 (2016: $47,885).
Related Party Transactions
Shareholder Lecans
Included within borrowings and trade and other payables are the following amounts owed to shareholders:
Group
As at 31 As at 31
Decamber December
2017 2016
$ 5
Loan from George Roskos 1,950,590 1,950,580
Seller note in relation to acquisition of HSC 4945506 4,600,437
6,896,006 6,560,027

On acquisition of HSC there was amount owed to, George Roskos of $400,000. $286,000 of this remains unpakt at
year end, As part of the acquisition of Atlantic Carbon Group LLC, George Roskos advanced a $1,664,590 restricted

loan to Atlantic Carbon Group LLC. Both loans remain fully cutstanding as at 31 December 2017,

in addition to the above George Roskos loaned $250,000 to Coal Contractors (1991) Inc and $240,000 to Hazleton

Shaft LLC during the year. These amounts were setfled before year end with no balance cutstanding.

As part of the amounts raised to fund the acquisition of HSC a Sefler note was entered in to for $4,000,000. This is a
commercial secured subordinated promissory note with an interest rate of 7% per annum. The maturity date is no later
than 6 months after satisfaction of all amounts due to White Oak Global Advisors. In the year, interest of $336,069

(2016: $609,437) has been capitalised in to the loan amount in line with the terms of the agreement.
Intercompany Transactions

All group transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.
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26. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Loan from Atlantic Carbon Group Pic to Coal Contractors (1991) Inc

As at 31 December 2017 there were amounts receivable of $5,961,081 (31 December 2016: $6,039,940) due from Coal
Contractors (1891) Inc to the Company. The amounts were interest free and repayable in Sterling when sufficient cash
resources are available in the subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the Company charged fees of $123,696 (31 December 2016: $146,884) to
Coal Contractors {1991} inc., for certain administrative and consulting services.

Loan to Atlantic Carbon Group Plc from Atlantic Carbon Group LLC

As at 31 December 2017 there were amounts payable of $517,457 (31 December 2016; 473,265) due to Atlantic Carbon
Group LLC to the Company. The amounts were Interest free and repayable in Sterling when required by the subsidiary,

Loan from Atlantic Carbon Group Plc to Hazleton Shaft LLC

As at 31 December 2017 there were amounts receivable of $1,144,125 (31 December 2016: $797,102) due from Hazleton
Shaft LLC. The amounts were interest free and repayable in Sterling when sufficient cash resources are available in the
subsidiary.

Loan from Coal Contractors to Atlantic Carbon Group LLC

As at 31 Decamber 2017 there were amounts receivable of $876,36% (31 December 2016: $726,575) due from Coal
Contractors (1991) Inc to Atlantic Carbon Group LLC to. The amounts were interest free and repayable in US Dollars
when sufficient cash resources are available in the subsidiary.

All Group transactions have been eliminated on consclidation.
Loans between Hazleton Shaft LLC and Coal Contractors (1991) inc

As at 31 December 2017 there were amounts receivable of $25,085,452 (31 December 2016: $4,437,820) due from
Coal Contractors {1991) inc to Hazleton Shaft LLC. The amounts were interest free and repayabile in US Dollars when
sufficient cash resources are avallable in the subsidiary.

Loan from Atlantic Carbon Group LLC to Hazleton Shaft LLC

As at 31 December 2017 there were amounts receivable of $6,822,589 (31 December 2016: $7,100,921) due from
Hazleton Shaft LLC to Atlantic Carbon Group LLC. The amounts were interest free and repayable in US Dollars when
sufficient cash resources are avallable in the subsidiary.

All Group transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

Coal Sales between Coal Contractors (1991) Inc and Hazleton Shaft LCC

During the year Coal Contractors (1991) Inc sold run of mine coal with a total value of $13,245,320 and clean coal with

a total value of $556,162 to Hazleton Shaft LCC, Hazieton Shaft LLC sold run of mine coal with a tota! value of $149,770
to Coal Contractors (1991) Inc.

Other Transactions

Mayford Equities Limited, a company of which Stephen Best is a Director, was paid a fee of $31,673 for consulting
services to Atlantic Carbon Group plc. No balance was outstanding at the year-end.

During the year amounts owning from Coal Contractors (1991} Inc to Sleve Best for $66,494 were written off, with no
balance outstanding at year end.
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27. Ultimate Controlling Party
The Directors believe there to be no ultimate controlling party.

28. Subsequent Events

On 7 March 2018, Atlantic Carbon Group pk: issued 100,000,000 new ordinary shares in the Company at a price of
£0.005 per share raising £500,000 GBP,

On 30 January 2018, George Roskos advanced a loan to Hazieton Shaft LLC for $350,000.

©n 11 April 2018, The Group signed a temporary amendment to the mining leases held with Pagnotti Enterprises Inc.
The amendment lasts one year from 1 May 2018 and results in a decreased royalty rate of $4.05 per tonne, subject to
a guaranteed bi-monthly amount of $84,375. There is also a bonus royalty payable if average sales price for any
quarter exceeds $110 per tonne. A consent fee of $50,000 was payable on signing of the amendment.

On 17 April 2018, Atlantic Carbon Group plc issued 100,000,000 new ordinary shares in the Company at a price of
£0.005 per share raising £500,000 GBP.
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